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The other lines 
So far in this book we have been following the families of just two of the Waugh’s, the two 
we tagged “Aussie”, William and Alexander. Both had brothers and sisters and if we follow 
the family history back another generation or two, there are many more family lines that 
could be followed. Appendix 1. covers some of these lines and the fold­out pages in the back 
of this book show just how many, and how complicated these family lines can become.
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Dr.  John Neill Waugh was “Aussie” Alexander’s brother. It seems from 
what we know of both of them that they never saw each other in Australia. It is also interesting 
that the family tree of Dr. John (next pages) shows, I think, all of his descendants only 2 of his 
11 children had offspring, whereas his brother Alexander has in excess of 1200 identified (and 
there are more) descendants. 

(Dr. John Neill WAUGH) (1818­1900) (D39) 
Dr. John Neill WAUGH (1818­1900) qualified as a Dr. at St. Barts Hospital London .as 

MRCS.MD. In 1847 he was out of work so came to Australia as Ship's Surgeon on the "Walmer 
Castle" arriving in Sydney in 1848. He went to Gundagai and was the first qualified medical 
practitioner in that town. 

According to the records of the Royal Australian Historical Society. 

"He departed therefrom after the flood of 1852 had swept away his home and surgery, with the 
majority of his erstwhile patients." 

It goes on to say & I quote.."The Gundagai correspondent of the Goulburn Herald (my 
ubiquitous friend, John Spencer, once again!) wrote” : 

“A Mr. Waugh, a medical gentleman, has arrived in this town to practice his profession. 
We cordially wish him success, but unless he condescends to connect a retail drug establishment 
with it he will do no good. We feel competent to hold this opinion as we have practised in the 
colony and feel sure that in a locality like ours with the few and scattered population around, 
without some adjunct to the profession it would not pay anyone the expense of the horses 
necessary to visit the patients.” 

The Hon. James Gormly M.L.C., tells us that Dr. Waugh's residence and dispensary were 
just adjacent to where the Prince Alfred Bridge viaduct now stands. The Gormly home was next 
door. When the great flood came down the Dr. was away on a professional call but his servant 
lost his life.. 

Gundagai must have been one of his earliest professional ventures. Where he went 
thereafter I do not know, but he lived until 1903,  attaining a ripe old age. 

Dr. Waugh was not long in Gundagai before he fell foul (as did everyone eventually!!) of 
Dr. John Spencer. Again I quote from Spencer :­ 

“Mr Surgeon Waugh was thrown from his horse opposite Mr. Spencer's Family Hotel, 
two dogs having run out and frightened the animal, or, if the evidence of a young boy can be 
relied upon, one dog bit the horse on the hind foot.. The landlord, Spencer, was summoned and 
although the Dog Act is not yet extended to Gundagai and the dogs were disowned by the 
landlord, he was fined 1 Pound with expenses. This decision we deem illegal, South Gundagai 
being outside the limits of the Colony!.This is the fourth time Mr. Waugh has been thrown from 
his horse in his short residence here."
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Surgeon Waugh was appointed a local Police Magistrate soon after this, and was in a 
position to deliver some self satisfying verdicts that did not meet with the approval of that 
sarcastic dog­owner, John Spencer. 

“Dr. Waugh's brief reign in Gundagai ended, as has been stated, with the advent of the 
1892 flood. He was appointed and sworn in as the head of a number of special constabulary to 
keep law and order and control the rescue work when that cataclysm fell ." end quote 

His movements after leaving Gundagai are fairly hazy but it is believed he went gold 
prospecting and that in 1854 he was ill with TB and retired to England..In 1860..recovered, he 
went to Algiers then in 1863 returned to Australia and became a highly respected medical 
practitioner in Brisbane. 

In 1863 he married his cousinMargaret Pasfield WAUGH (1837­1910) and they had 11 
children. 

John drowned in the Brisbane flood of 1900 aged 82. He is buried at Toowong in 
Brisbane.
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John and Margaret’s  11 children. 

D35..Mary..married R.P. FRANCIS..They had 1 child. 
D37..Gertrude..Did not marry. 
D39..Magdalen..Did not marry..Drowned on "Quetta" when it hit a reef Thurs.Is. 
D41..Arthur..Did not marry. 
D43..Margaret Edith..Did not marry. 
D45..George..m Florence DEUCHER..They had 1 child. 
D47..Fanny Isabella (Dovie)..Did not marry. 
D49..Naomi..(Nono)..Did not marry. 
D51..Alice Rachel..Did not marry. 
D53..Francis Neill..Did not marry. 
D55..John Neill..Did not marry 

DESCENDANTS of Dr. John Neill Waugh 1818­1900 
Parent 
 Child 
  Grandchild 
   Great­Grandchild 
    2G 3G 4G­Grandchild 
 

 John Neill Waugh (1818­1900) 
+Margaret Pasfield Waugh (d.1910) 
Mary Waugh (b.1863) 
 +R P Francis 
  Richard Powell Francis 
  +Nell Todman 
  Angela Francis 
  Deborah Francis 
Gertrude Waugh (1865­1890) 
Magdalen Waugh (1867­1890) 
Arthur Waugh (1868­1873) 
Margaret Edith Waugh (1870­1872) 
George Waugh (b.1872) 
 +Florence A Deucher (1874­1905) 
  John Deucher Neill Waugh 
  +Violet Verley Cameron (d.1960) 
  John Neill Cameron Waugh 
  Margaret Naomi Cameron Waugh 
 Fanny Isabella "Dovie" Waugh (1874­1966) 
Naomi "Nono" Waugh (1875­1958) 
Alice Rachel Waugh (b.1877) 
Francis Neill Waugh (b. 1878 
 John Neill Waugh (aft. 1879
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The MUNRO/WAUGH Line 
This line of Waughs relates to descendants of Elisabeth Waugh, who was a daughter of 

Rev. Alexander Waugh DD, a sister of “Wealthy” William. She was an Aunty of “Aussie” 
Alexander and a first cousin of “Aussie” William Waugh. 

The diagram below shows these relationships and also has Dr John Waugh highlighted. 
This section of the family tree has been edited to emphasise the “Australian” Waughs. I have 
omitted many of the brothers and sisters, spouses and children of those highlighted. 

Thomas Waugh (1706­06JUL1783) 
+Margaret Johnston (1714­1789) 
 Thomas Waugh (1750­1820) 
 +Isabella Crosbie (1771­184?) 
  William Waugh (Aussie) (07FEB1808­JAN1854) 
  +Frances Thorpe (Oxley) (19JAN1815­21NOV1891) 
Alexander Waugh DD (1754­1827) 
+Mary Neill (1760­1840) 
 Thomas Waugh (1787­1864) 
William Waugh (Wealthy William) (1788­1866) 
 +Ann Harvey 
  William Neill Waugh (1813­1881) 
  Alexander Waugh (Aussie) (1814­1894) 
  Dr. John Neill Waugh (1818­1900) 
 John Waugh (1789­1833) 
Margaret Waugh (1791­1865) 
 Elisabeth Waugh ("Aunt Young") (1803­1873) 
+Rev. John Young 
Mary Neill Young (1835­1923) 
  +ColinMunro (1834­1918) 
Helen Young (b.1842) 

+John Angus 

Elisabeth’s daughter Mary Neill Young (1835­1923) married Colin Munro and they 
emigrated to Queensland in 1862. Their children had cane farms in North Queensland. 

The family tree on the next page lists some of this line and I think all of those within the 
line who now live in Australia.
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DESCENDANTS of Elisabeth Waugh ("Aunt Young")The MUNRO/WAUGH Line 
Parent 
 Child 
  Grandchild 
   Great­Grandchild 
    2G 3G 4G 5G 
 

 Elisabeth Waugh ("Aunt Young") (1803­1873) 
+Rev. John Young 
 Mary Neill Young (1835­1923) 
 +Colin Munro (1834­1918) 
  Colin Graham Munro (1864­1949) 
  +Mary Francis Waugh 
   Ellen Beatrice Munro (1897­1951) 
   Colin Waugh Munro (1898­1907) 
   John Norman Botha Munro (1900­1964) 
   Mary Silias Munro (1903­1968) 
   William Graham Munro (b.1905) 
   Alexander Waugh Munro (1908­1981) 
   +Amilda Peggy Mater 
   Gail Elizabeth Frances Munro (b.1942) 
  Wendy Suzanne Munro (b.1943) 
   Colin Charles Munro (b.1949) 
  John Munro (1867­1894) 
 William Albert Munro (1870­1937) 
  +Bessie Angus 
   Patience Munro 
   +John Toulouse (d.1992) 
    Susie Toulouse (b.1968) 
   David Beattie Munro 
  Charles Gilbert Munro (1869­1903) 
  Eliza Waugh Munro (1871­1958) 
  Alice Munro (1873­1953) 
  Alexander Munro (1873­1893) 
  Archibald Chisolm Munro (1879­1934) 
  +Jessie Mabel Brown 
  Archibald Neill Chisolm Munro (1909­1981) 
  +Elspeth lily Annand 
   Neil Nicolette Hodgen Munro 
   Elspeth Jane Munro (b.1942) 
   Ian Colin Lachlan Munro (b.1951) 
  +Jessie McMaster 
  +Janet Fraser 
  Colin Walter Munro (1913­1993) 
  +Joan Elizabeth Parry­Oaken 
   Peter Colin Parry Munro (b.1950) 
   Ian Ross Munro (b.1953) 
  Jean Clair Munro (b.1915) 
  +Gerald Herbert Besley (d.1995) 
   Helen Margaret Besley (b.1940) 
   Kenneth Hugh Besley (b.1943) 
  Flora Ails Campbell Munro (b.1920) 
 Helen Young (b.1842) 
+John Angus 
 Bessie Angus 
 +William Albert Munro (1870­1937) 
  Patience Munro 
  +John Toulouse (d.1992) 
   Susie Toulouse (b.1968) 
  David Beattie Munro 
 Annette Angus 
 +Reuben Bryce 
 Neill Angus 
 Crayford Angus 
+Margaret Menzies
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The Tasmanian Lines 
Tasmania is the home of two lines of the Waugh family. One is closely related (closer 

than the rest of us) to Evelyn Waugh the Author, and the other arrived in Australia via a few 
generations in Hungary. These are interesting connections but to fully understand the links you 
may need to carefully read Appendix 1 and its associated photo album and follow the 
handwritten fold­out sheets in the back of this book. 

The Tasmanian Connection 
Parent 
 Child 
  Grandchild 
   Great­Grandchild 
    2G 3G­Grandchild 
 

 Dr Alexander Waugh MD (1840­1906)   (1st Cousin of “Aussie” Alexander Waugh) 
+Annie Gosse Morgan (1837­1908) 
Arthur Waugh (24AUG1866­28JUN1943) 
 +Catherine Charlotte Raban 
  Evelyn Arthur St.John Waugh (b.1903) 
  Alexander (Alec) Raban Waugh (b.1898) 
 Constance Ethel Waugh (b.1870) 
 John (Alick) Alexander Waugh (1871­1900)Met Florence while in the Navy, and ship visiting Hobart 
 +Florence Webster (d.1932) 
  Eric Cadogan Waugh 

(b.1900) 
  +Katherine Clarke 
  Alison Waugh 
  +Peter Shoobridge 
   Richard Shoobridge 
  Katherine Shoobridge 
  William Shoobridge 
  Margaret Shoobridge 
  Katherine Waugh 
  +Lee Sainsbury 
  Christine Waugh 
  Felicity Waugh 
 Beatrice Helen Waugh (b.1872) 
 Elspeth Alice Waugh (1875­1952) 

(Author: wrote Brideshead Revisited) * There is more information 
later in this section on this famous line of the family
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The information that follows came from notes by Alison Shoobridge who lives at Nubeena 
near Port Arthur. 

Some one hundred years ago a branch of the Waugh family lived in the village of 
Midsomer Norton, Somerset, England. The father was Dr Alexander Waugh who was the local 
doctor for the village and surrounding area. He was married to one Annie Gosse nee Morgan and 
they had five children ­ three girls, Connie, Beatrice and Elsie; and two boys ­ Arthur and 
Alexander ­ called Alick. 

Mrs Annie Waugh was not happy in the marriage and strongly discouraged her girls from 
marrying and they never did. Beatrice (Trissie) died young. Connie was the mainstay of the 
Church of England at Midsomer Norton, Elsie was a diabetic and took great care of her health. 

Arthur married Kate Raban and they had two sons, Alec and Evelyn who both became 
writers and Evelyn was an author of some note. 

Alick was sent off  to train as a naval officer at the age of 13! in August, 1884. Before he 
left for training college he visited his grandfather, Reverend James Hay Waugh who was the 
minister of the church of Corsley ­ I think in Somerset? 

The lad may have been expecting a money gift but he received instead something more 
interesting for this generation ­ a photo of his grandfather and he wrote on the back. 

To Alexander Waugh. May the discipline of the navy teach him that 
obedience is the path to knowledge and may his filial piety daily assure 
him of the presence and guidance of his Father in Heaven is the earnest 
prayer of his loving Grandfather. August 10th, 1884. 

Alick duly finished his training and went off doing sea duty in the Pacific. His ship spent 
some time charting around the island of Tuvalu and there is a Waugh rock on charts of this area. 

Naval vessels visited Hobart Town and Waugh's ship was no exception. No doubt it was 
the same there as now ­ the girls flock to the wharf and pair up with the sailors to the dismay of 
the local lads, and the society matrons organise balls and outings for the officers. One Mrs 
Arthur Webster, wife of a wealthy Hobart Town merchant, organised for her two daughters 
Emily (Mommie) and Florence to meet naval officers and Alick was attracted to Florence 
Webster and the two were married in 1896 at All Saints Church, Hobart. 

According to a newspaper account the ship's crew unhitched the horses from the bridal 
carriage and pulled the happy pair to the reception. 

Alick took his new wife back to Midsomer where they moved in with the family. 
Tragically Alick was stricken with a tropical disease and died before his baby was born. 

The baby, born February 1899 was named Eric Cadogan ­ (the Cadogan name came from 
his Waugh Grandmother's family). The baby's aunts were thrilled to have a baby to look after but 
Dr Alexander decreed that he could not afford to feed another two mouths and Florence and 
baby Eric must return to Hobart, so off they went, with a girl from Midsomer Norton to act as 
nurse and a stack of unpaid bills from her late husband's estate. 

They moved in with Mommie, and Eric was brought up entirely by women. He studied 
law and obtained his degree at the University of Tasmania and while working at articles became
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friendly with a family named Clarke, in particular with the two youngest girls, Patty and Kath. 

They lived and worked in Hobart but their parents lived at Nubeena, on Tasman's 
Peninsula, and the young people had wonderful holidays on the farm. Eric fell in love with Kath 
and they were married in 1928 in Hobart Town, by Kath's grandfather, who was a congregational 
minister. They had four daughters, Alison (1930), Kate (1932), Christine (1933) and Felicity 
(1937) who presented Eric with a total of 15 grandchildren, but, of course as each girl married, 
the name of Waugh lapsed in Hobart.
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The Hungarian Connection 
Parent 
 Child 
  Grandchild 
   Great­Grandchild 
    2G 
 

 George Waugh (1801­1873) 
+Mary Walker 
Alexander Waugh (1836­1875) 
+Ellen Veiner (1837­1919) 
Alexander Telford Waugh (b.1865) 
 Percival Bentley Waugh (b.1867)  Percy marries Alruna and lives in Hungary 
 +Alruna de Kocz 
  Zarita Waugh (b.1907) Zarita flees Hungary in WWII and moves to Tasmania 
  +Franci Fiala 
  +Uli Mattay 
  Marileen Mattay (b.1939) 
  Andrew J.M. Mattay (b.1941) 
  Barbara Mattay (b.1943) 
  Julian Mattay (b.1945) 
Mary Waugh (1870­1948) 

Another group of relatives arrived in 1946 who were descendants of (yet another) 
Alexander Waugh (1836­1875) who had two sons, Percy and Telford and a daughter Mary. 
Percy married Alruna de Kocz,  a Hungarian girl, and he stayed in Hungary. 

He apparently was in the British army and met her while serving in Hungary, he later 
worked as mining engineer. 

Percy and Alruna had one child Zarita who married Julian Mattay. They had four children, 
Marileen, Andrew, Barbara and Julian and lived in Budapest. At the end of the World War II in 
Europe they decided to flee from the advancing Russian army and all set off in a truck with 
whatever possessions they could put on the truck, in haste. 

At a Displaced Persons camp in Germany they contacted Evelyn Waugh, through his 
publisher and he contacted Eric Waugh in Tasmania and asked him to sponsor the Mattay 
family. They duly arrived in Hobart and lived with Eric’s family until a house could be found for 
them. Zarita, aged 90 still lives in Hobart and also Andrew and his wife. 

George Waugh was the son of Rev. Alexander Waugh 
DD, a brother of “Wealthy” William. Uncle of 
“Aussie” Alexander and 1st cousin of “Aussie” 
William
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USA Connection 
A line of the family related via “Aussie” William Waugh as listed below is descended from 
William’s older brother Alexander born in 1803. The following pages are a genealogy reprint 
from one of the descendants who lives in America.
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Descendants of Alexander Waugh 1803 
Source: Richard Clarke by email 31/8/06 

I have found a Waugh Line in the USA 

Generation No. 1 

1.  ALEXANDER 3 WAUGH  (THOMAS 2 , THOMAS 1 ) was born 25 January 1803 in St. Boswell's, Roxburgh, Scotland 
(?Christening), and died Bet. 1843 ­ 1851.  He married MARGARET MIDDLETON 05 November 1830 in St. Boswell's, 
Roxburgh, Scotland, daughter of HODGSON MIDDLETON and PHILLIS SMITH.  She was born 06 October 1804 in 
Borthwick, Midlothian, Scotland, and died 29 December 1880 in England. 

More About ALEXANDER WAUGH: 
Burial: Ancrum, Scotland 

More About MARGARET MIDDLETON: 
Burial: St. Mary and Magdalene Cemetery, York, Yorkshire, England 

More About ALEXANDER WAUGH and MARGARET MIDDLETON: 
Marriage: 05 November 1830, St. Boswell's, Roxburgh, Scotland 

Children of ALEXANDER WAUGH and MARGARET MIDDLETON are: 
i.  THOMAS 4 WAUGH, b. 11 December 1831. 
ii.  PHYLLIS MIDDLETON WAUGH, b. 29 June 1833. 

More About PHYLLIS MIDDLETON WAUGH: 
Christening: 25 July 1833, St. Boswell's, Roxburgh, Scotland 

iii.  ISABELLA WAUGH, b. 20 March 1835. 

More About ISABELLA WAUGH: 
Christening: 15 April 1835, St. Boswell's, Roxburgh, Scotland 

iv.  WILLIAM HODGSON WAUGH, b. 05 September 1837; d. 13 March 1859, Roxburgh Terrace, Edinburgh, 
Scotland. 

More About WILLIAM HODGSON WAUGH: 
Burial: Ancrum, Roxburgh, Scotland 
Christening: 10 November 1837, St. Boswell's, Roxburgh, Scotland 
Occupation: Law Clerk 

2.  v.  MARGARET WAUGH, b. 10 October 1841, Grange, Ancrum, Roxburgh, Scotland; d. 08 December 1915, 
Trinidad, Las Animas, Colorado, USA. 

3.  vi.  ELIZA JANE WAUGH, b. 20 August 1843, Grange, Ancrum, Roxburgh, Scotland; d. 26 March 1912, Eaglescliffe, 
Yarmouth, Yorkshire, England. 

Generation No. 2 

2.  MARGARET 4 WAUGH (ALEXANDER 3 , THOMAS 2 , THOMAS 1 ) was born 10 October 1841 in Grange, Ancrum, 
Roxburgh, Scotland, and died 08 December 1915 in Trinidad, Las Animas, Colorado, USA.  She married WILLIAM 
GREEN 05 January 1865 in Darlington, Durham, England, son of ROBERT GREEN and ELIZABETH MIDDLETON.  He 
was born 20 July 1841 in Darlington, Durham, England, and died 10 January 1916 in Trinidad, Las Animas, 
Colorado, USA. 

More About MARGARET WAUGH: 
Burial: 09 December 1915, Masonic Cemetery, Trinidad, Las Animas, Colorado, USA 
Christening: 15 December 1841, St. Boswell's, Roxburgh, Scotland 
Occupation: School Teacher 

More About WILLIAM GREEN: 
Burial: 12 January 1916, Masonic Cemetery, Trinidad, Las Animas, Colorado, USA 

More About WILLIAM GREEN and MARGARET WAUGH:
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Marriage: 05 January 1865, Darlington, Durham, England 

Children of MARGARET WAUGH and WILLIAM GREEN are: 
4.  i.  ALEXANDER 5 GREEN, b. 13 October 1865, Entercommon, North Yorkshire, England; d. 06 November 1942, 

Manitou Springs, El Paso, Colorado, USA. 
5.  ii.  ROBERT GREEN, b. 13 October 1865, Entercommon, North Yorkshire, England. 

iii.  WILLIAM HODGSON GREEN, b. 09 October 1866, Entercommon, North Yorkshire, England; d. 27 January 
1867, Entercommon, North Yorkshire, England. 

6.  iv.  ISABELLA GREEN, b. 15 September 1867, Entercommon, North Yorkshire, England; d. 14 June 1969, Delta, 
Delta, Colorado, USA. 

7.  v.  WILLIAM HODGSON GREEN, b. 07 December 1868, Entercommon, North Yorkshire, England; d. October 1945, 
Colorado, USA. 

vi.  MARGARET GREEN, b. 07 November 1870, Entercommon, North Yorkshire, England; d. 07 October 1876, 
Richmond, Virginia, USA. 

8.  vii.  ELEANOR ELIZABETH GREEN, b. 21 May 1872, Entercommon, North Yorkshire, England. 
9.  viii.  PHYLLIS GREEN, b. 09 June 1873, Entercommon, North Yorkshire, England; d. 1918. 
10.  ix.  ANNIE HILDA GREEN, b. 26 December 1874, Haughton Le Skern, Darlington, Durham, England; d. Trinidad, 

Las Animas, Colorado, USA. 
x.  HILTON MIDDLETON GREEN, b. 17 July 1876, Richmond, Virginia, USA; d. 26 August 1876, Richmond, 

Virginia, USA. 
xi.  LYDIA MARGARET GREEN, b. 15 March 1878, Mitchell's Station, Culpepper, Virginia, USA; d. 09 May 1878, 

Mitchell's Station, Culpepper, Virginia, USA. 
xii.  FRANK GREEN, b. 18 May 1880, Orange Court House, Orange County, , Virginia, USA; d. 06 June 1880, 

Orange Court House, Orange County, , Virginia, USA. 
11.  xiii.  GEORGE SEPTIMUSMIDDLETON GREEN, b. 09 September 1881, Yaton, Orange, Virginia, USA; d. 06 January 

1962, Edgewater, Jefferson, Colorado, USA. 

3.  ELIZA JANE 4 WAUGH (ALEXANDER 3 , THOMAS 2 , THOMAS 1 ) was born 20 August 1843 in Grange, Ancrum, 
Roxburgh, Scotland, and died 26 March 1912 in Eaglescliffe, Yarmouth, Yorkshire, England.  She married OLIVER 
STRICKLAND, son of ROBERT STRICKLAND and PHYLLIS MIDDLETON.  He was born 09 June 1844 in Middleton, St. 
George, Durham, England, and died 19 April 1884 in Yarmouth, Yorkshire, England. 

More About ELIZA JANE WAUGH: 
Burial: St. Mary and Magdalene Church, Yarmouth, Yorkshire, England 
Christening: 21 October 1843, St. Boswell's, Roxburgh, Scotland 

Children of ELIZA WAUGH and OLIVER STRICKLAND are: 
i.  PHYLLIS 5 STRICKLAND, b. 1874, Yarmouth, Yorkshire, England. 

More About PHYLLIS STRICKLAND: 
Christening: 08 June 1874, Yarmouth, Yorkshire, England 

ii.  ROBERT STRICKLAND, b. Abt. 1874, Yarmouth, Yorkshire, England; m. CONSTANCE E HAY; b. Abt. 1879. 

More About ROBERT STRICKLAND: 
Christening: 27 December 1874, Yarmouth, Yorkshire, England 

More About CONSTANCE E HAY: 
Christening: St. Mary's, Reigate, Surrey, England 

iii.  ISABELLA WAUGH STRICKLAND, b. Abt. 1875, Yarmouth, Yorkshire, England; d. 09 June 1948. 

Generation No. 3 

4.  ALEXANDER 5 GREEN (MARGARET 4 WAUGH, ALEXANDER 3 , THOMAS 2 , THOMAS 1 ) was born 13 October 1865 in 
Entercommon, North Yorkshire, England, and died 06 November 1942 in Manitou Springs, El Paso, Colorado, 
USA.  He married IDA MARIA JACOBSEN 01 November 1892 in Manitou Springs, El Paso, Colorado, USA, daughter 
of JAKOB SAMUELSSON and BRITA ANDERSDR.  She was born 17 December 1863 in Kisa, Ostergothlund, Sweden, 
and died 16 November 1955 in Colorado Springs, El Paso, Colorado, USA. 

More About ALEXANDER GREEN: 
Burial: Manitou Springs, El Paso, Colorado, USA 

More About IDA MARIA JACOBSEN: 
Burial: Manitou Springs, El Paso, Colorado, USA
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More About ALEXANDER GREEN and IDA JACOBSEN: 
Divorce: Bef. 1920 
Marriage: 01 November 1892, Manitou Springs, El Paso, Colorado, USA 

Children of ALEXANDER GREEN and IDA JACOBSEN are: 
i.  WILLIAM AUGUST 6 GREEN, b. 28 December 1893, Manitou Springs, El Paso, Colorado, USA; d. August 1970, 

Colorado Springs, El Paso, Colorado, USA; m. MARY E. NEWBOLT, 30 July 1924, Tulsa, Tulsa, Oklahoma, 
USA; b. 23 March 1900, Kentucky, USA; d. 25 May 1997. 

More About WILLIAM AUGUST GREEN: 
Burial: Denver, Colorado, USA 

More About WILLIAM GREEN and MARY NEWBOLT: 
Marriage: 30 July 1924, Tulsa, Tulsa, Oklahoma, USA 

ii.  ROBERT C. GREEN, b. 03 May 1899, Manitou Springs, El Paso, Colorado, USA; d. 28 December 1977, 
Colorado Springs, El Paso, Colorado, USA; m. MARGARET LOUISE LIBY, 06 August 1926, Colorado Springs, 
El Paso, Colorado, USA; b. 15 April 1904, Monmouth, Illinois, USA; d. 12 June 1996, Colorado Springs, El 
Paso, Colorado, USA. 

More About ROBERT C. GREEN: 
Burial: Manitou Springs, El Paso, Colorado, USA 

More About MARGARET LOUISE LIBY: 
Burial: Manitou Springs, El Paso, Colorado, USA 

More About ROBERT GREEN and MARGARET LIBY: 
Marriage: 06 August 1926, Colorado Springs, El Paso, Colorado, USA 

iii.  EDWARD ALEXANDER GREEN, b. 24 January 1901, Manitou Springs, El Paso, Colorado, USA; d. 12 December 
1971, Colorado Springs, El Paso, Colorado, USA; m. IDA EMILY SYVRUD, 17 June 1927, Long Beach, Los 
Angeles, California, USA; b. 31 December 1901, Mt. Horeb, Dane, Wisconsin, USA; d. 08 November 1997, 
Colorado Springs, El Paso, Colorado, USA. 

More About EDWARD ALEXANDER GREEN: 
Burial: 15 December 1971, Manitou Springs, El Paso, Colorado, USA 

More About IDA EMILY SYVRUD: 
Burial: 12 November 1997, Manitou Springs, El Paso, Colorado, USA 

More About EDWARD GREEN and IDA SYVRUD: 
Marriage: 17 June 1927, Long Beach, Los Angeles, California, USA 

5.  ROBERT 5 GREEN (MARGARET 4 WAUGH, ALEXANDER 3 , THOMAS 2 , THOMAS 1 ) was born 13 October 1865 in 
Entercommon, North Yorkshire, England.  He married EFFIE A. REED 30 June 1900 in arapahoe County, Colorado, 
USA, daughter of FATHER and MOTHER.  She was born Abt. 1872 in Iowa, USA. 

More About ROBERT GREEN and EFFIE REED: 
Marriage: 30 June 1900, arapahoe County, Colorado, USA 

Child of ROBERT GREEN and EFFIE REED is: 
i.  MARGARET 6 GREEN, b. 10 September 1901, Colorado, USA; d. April 1982, Saulte Sainte Marie, Chippewa, 

Michigan, USA; m. GLENN G. BARNES, 1930, Groom 38; Bride 27; b. 05 May 1891, South Dakota, USA 
(parents born in New York); d. September 1970, Saulte Sainte Marie, Chippewa, Michigan, USA. 

More About GLENN BARNES and MARGARET GREEN: 
Marriage: 1930, Groom 38; Bride 27 

6.  ISABELLA 5 GREEN (MARGARET 4 WAUGH, ALEXANDER 3 , THOMAS 2 , THOMAS 1 ) was born 15 September 1867 in 
Entercommon, North Yorkshire, England, and died 14 June 1969 in Delta, Delta, Colorado, USA.  She married 
ROBERT FRANK GIRLING 18 January 1892 in Ludlow, Las Animas, Colorado, USA, son of GEORGE GIRLING and 
ELLEN BASH.  He was born 28 February 1867 in Chicago, Cook, Illinois, USA, and died 08 September 1943 in 
Rogers Mesa, Delta, Colorado, USA. 

More About ISABELLA GREEN:
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Burial: 18 June 1969, Riverside Cemetery, Hotchkiss, Delta, Colorado, USA 

More About ROBERT GIRLING and ISABELLA GREEN: 
Marriage: 18 January 1892, Ludlow, Las Animas, Colorado, USA 

Children of ISABELLA GREEN and ROBERT GIRLING are: 
i.  ROYDEN GEORGE 6 GIRLING, b. 19 February 1893, Manitou Springs, El Paso, Colorado, USA; d. 04 May 1987, 

Cory, Delta, Colorado, USA; m. (1) RUBY ETHEL DAVIES; b. 11 December 1903; d. 05 January 2002; m. (2) 
FLORENCE EVA DEGRAFFENRIED, 02 June 1923, Rogers Mesa, Delta, Colorado, USA; b. 15 October 1897, 
Maher, Montrose, Colorado, USA; d. 12 May 1976, Eckert, Delta, Colorado, USA. 

More About ROYDEN GEORGE GIRLING: 
Burial: 06 May 1987, Riverside Cemetery, Hotchkiss, Delta, Colorado, USA 

More About FLORENCE EVA DEGRAFFENRIED: 
Burial: 14 May 1976, Riverside Cemetery, Hotchkiss, Delta, Colorado, USA 

More About ROYDEN GIRLING and FLORENCE DEGRAFFENRIED: 
Marriage: 02 June 1923, Rogers Mesa, Delta, Colorado, USA 

12.  ii.  ROBERT JAMES GIRLING, b. 01 April 1900, Manitou Springs, El Paso, Colorado, USA; d. 01 December 1966, 
Mesa, Maricopa, Arizona, USA. 

13.  iii.  RALPH MIDDLETON GIRLING, b. 26 October 1902, Colorado City, El Paso, Colorado, USA; d. 29 May 1997, 
Delta, Delta, Colorado, USA. 

7.  WILLIAM HODGSON 5 GREEN (MARGARET 4 WAUGH, ALEXANDER 3 , THOMAS 2 , THOMAS 1 ) was born 07 December 
1868 in Entercommon, North Yorkshire, England, and died October 1945 in Colorado, USA.  He married (1) 
LILLIAN L. KURTANDAL.  She died October 1917.  He married (2) EDITH M..  She was born Abt. 1878 in Iowa, 
USA, and died October 1926. 

More About WILLIAM HODGSON GREEN: 
Burial: 23 October 1945, Masonic Cemetery, Trinidad, Las Animas, Colorado, USA 

More About LILLIAN L. KURTANDAL: 
Burial: 01 November 1917, Masonic Cemetery, Trinidad, Las Animas, Colorado, USA 

More About EDITH M.: 
Burial: 18 October 1926, Masonic Cemetery, Trinidad, Las Animas, Colorado, USA 

Children of WILLIAM GREEN and LILLIAN KURTANDAL are: 
i.  HELEN RUTH 6 GREEN, b. 14 April 1902, Colorado, USA; d. Bef. 1990. 
ii.  HILTON K. GREEN, b. 14 April 1902, Colorado, USA; d. 1925. 

More About HILTON K. GREEN: 
Burial: 04 December 1925, Masonic Cemetery, Trinidad, Las Animas, Colorado, USA 

iii.  PHYLLIS MARGARET GREEN, b. 17 December 1907, Colorado, USA; d. Bef. 1990; m. UNKNOWN SPOUSE. 

Child of WILLIAM GREEN and EDITH M. is: 
iv.  WILLIAM W. 6 GREEN, b. Abt. May 1919, Colorado, USA; d. Bef. 1990. 

More About WILLIAM W. GREEN: 
Cause of Death: heart attack 

8.  ELEANOR ELIZABETH 5 GREEN (MARGARET 4 WAUGH, ALEXANDER 3 , THOMAS 2 , THOMAS 1 ) was born 21 May 1872 in 
Entercommon, North Yorkshire, England.  She married JEROME IGO 14 July 1897 in Colorado, USA, son of ? 
DOYLE.  He was born 20 February 1852 in New York, USA, and died Bef. January 1920. 

More About JEROME IGO and ELEANOR GREEN: 
Marriage: 14 July 1897, Colorado, USA 

Child of ELEANOR GREEN and JEROME IGO is: 
i.  HENRY JEROME 6 IGO, b. 14 July 1897, Colorado, USA; d. 09 September 1976, Walnut Creek, Contra Costa,
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California, USA; m. IDA JULIANNE DANIELSON, Abt. 1924, Groom 23; Bride 24; b. 04 November 1899, 
Colorado, USA; d. 28 July 1982, Walnut Creek, Contra Costa, California, USA. 

More About HENRY IGO and IDA DANIELSON: 
Marriage: Abt. 1924, Groom 23; Bride 24 

9.  PHYLLIS 5 GREEN (MARGARET 4 WAUGH, ALEXANDER 3 , THOMAS 2 , THOMAS 1 ) was born 09 June 1873 in 
Entercommon, North Yorkshire, England, and died 1918.  She married JOHN ALLAN.  He was born 1867 in 
Edinburgh, Scotland, and died Aft. January 1920. 

Children of PHYLLIS GREEN and JOHN ALLAN are: 
14.  i.  MARGARET A. 6 ALLAN, b. 25 November 1894, Hastings, Colorado, USA; d. 18 December 1986, Los Angeles 

County, California, USA. 
ii.  PHYLLIS M. ALLAN, b. 03 July 1896, Colorado, USA; d. 14 May 1998, Cary, Wake, North Carolina, USA; m. 

ARTHUR MEES; b. 15 May 1890; d. August 1981, Oshkosh, Winnebago, Wisconsin, USA. 
iii.  DAVID ALLAN, b. 17 April 1898, Colorado, USA; d. December 1969, Trinidad, Las Animas, Colorado, USA; m. 

OPAL. 

10.  ANNIE HILDA 5 GREEN (MARGARET 4 WAUGH, ALEXANDER 3 , THOMAS 2 , THOMAS 1 ) was born 26 December 1874 in 
Haughton Le Skern, Darlington, Durham, England, and died in Trinidad, Las Animas, Colorado, USA.  She married 
LAURENCE DEWAR STODDART 1904, son of ALEXANDER STODDART and ELIZABETH SIDEY.  He was born 1864 in 
England, and died Bef. April 1930 in Trinidad, Las Animas, Colorado, USA. 

More About LAURENCE STODDART and ANNIE GREEN: 
Marriage: 1904 

Children of ANNIE GREEN and LAURENCE STODDART are: 
i.  ELIZABETH HILDA 6 STODDART, b. 21 August 1907, Trinidad, Las Animas, Colorado, USA; d. Abt. 1925, 

Trinidad, Las Animas, Colorado, USA. 

More About ELIZABETH HILDA STODDART: 
Cause of Death: Undiagnosed illness 

ii.  LAURENCE ALEXANDER STODDART, b. 17 July 1909, Trinidad, Las Animas, Colorado, USA; d. July 1968, 
Logan, Cache, Utah, USA; m. UNKNOWN SPOUSE, 1932, Trinidad, Las Animas, Colorado, USA. 

More About LAURENCE ALEXANDER STODDART: 
Cause of Death: Suicide ­ had a malignant brain tumour 

More About LAURENCE STODDART and UNKNOWN SPOUSE: 
Marriage: 1932, Trinidad, Las Animas, Colorado, USA 

11.  GEORGE SEPTIMUS MIDDLETON 5 GREEN (MARGARET 4 WAUGH, ALEXANDER 3 , THOMAS 2 , THOMAS 1 ) was born 09 
September 1881 in Yaton, Orange, Virginia, USA, and died 06 January 1962 in Edgewater, Jefferson, Colorado, 
USA.  He married MARY EDNA HUNT 26 December 1906 in El Dorado, Butler, Kansas, USA.  She was born 19 
September 1879 in Cimmaron, Colfax, New Mexico, USA, and died 21 January 1950 in Denver, Denver, Colorado, 
USA. 

More About GEORGE SEPTIMUSMIDDLETON GREEN: 
Burial: 11 January 1962, Masonic Cemetery, Trinidad, Las Animas, Colorado, USA 

More About MARY EDNA HUNT: 
Burial: January 1950, Masonic Cemetery, Trinidad, Las Animas, Colorado, USA 

More About GEORGE GREEN and MARY HUNT: 
Marriage: 26 December 1906, El Dorado, Butler, Kansas, USA 

Children of GEORGE GREEN and MARY HUNT are: 
i.  MALCOLM GEORGE 6 GREEN, b. 08 October 1907, Trinidad, Las Animas, Colorado, USA; d. September 1927, 

California, USA. 

More About MALCOLM GEORGE GREEN: 
Cause of Death: heart disease
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15.  ii.  KENNETH LEONIDAS GREEN, b. 11 October 1909, Trinidad, Las Animas, Colorado, USA; d. 31 January 2003, 
Lakewood, Colorado, USA. 

Generation No. 4 

12.  ROBERT JAMES 6 GIRLING (ISABELLA 5 GREEN, MARGARET 4 WAUGH, ALEXANDER 3 , THOMAS 2 , THOMAS 1 ) was born 
01 April 1900 in Manitou Springs, El Paso, Colorado, USA, and died 01 December 1966 in Mesa, Maricopa, 
Arizona, USA.  He married VIRGINIA SYLVIA BARTO, daughter of CHARLES BARTO and CORA C..  She was born 27 
December 1901 in New York, USA, and died August 1976 in Opelika, Lee County, Alabama, USA. 

More About ROBERT JAMES GIRLING: 
Burial: Mesa, Maricopa, Arizona, USA 

Child of ROBERT GIRLING and VIRGINIA BARTO is: 
i.  RICHARD R. 7 GIRLING, b. 06 August 1922, Colorado, USA; d. June 1983, Opelika, Lee County, Alabama, USA; 

m. (1) UNKNOWN FIRST; m. (2) UNKNOWN SECOND. 

More About RICHARD GIRLING and UNKNOWN FIRST: 
Divorce: Unknown 

13.  RALPH MIDDLETON 6 GIRLING (ISABELLA 5 GREEN, MARGARET 4 WAUGH, ALEXANDER 3 , THOMAS 2 , THOMAS 1 ) was 
born 26 October 1902 in Colorado City, El Paso, Colorado, USA, and died 29 May 1997 in Delta, Delta, Colorado, 
USA.  He married (1) MARY ELEANOR DEGRAFFENRIED 02 September 1926 in Salt Lake City, Utah, USA, daughter 
of JAMES DEGRAFFENRIED and MARGARETTE PORTER.  She was born 09 January 1904 in Hotchkiss, Delta, 
Colorado, USA, and died 19 September 1980 in Montrose, Montrose, Colorado, USA.  He married (2) UNKNOWN 
SECOND SPOUSE 15 August 1981 in Alberta Heights, Eckert, Delta, Colorado, USA. 

More About RALPH MIDDLETON GIRLING: 
Burial: 31 May 1997, Riverside Cemetery, Hotchkiss, Delta, Colorado, USA 

More About MARY ELEANOR DEGRAFFENRIED: 
Burial: 22 September 1980, Riverside Cemetery, Hotchkiss, Delta, Colorado, USA 

More About RALPH GIRLING and MARY DEGRAFFENRIED: 
Marriage: 02 September 1926, Salt Lake City, Utah, USA 

More About RALPH GIRLING and UNKNOWN SPOUSE: 
Marriage: 15 August 1981, Alberta Heights, Eckert, Delta, Colorado, USA 

Child of RALPH GIRLING and MARY DEGRAFFENRIED is: 
i.  MARY ANN 7 GIRLING, b. 12 June 1939, Paonia, Delta, Colorado, USA; d. 03 June 2003, Delta, Delta, Colorado, 

USA; m. SPOUSE UNKNOWN, 01 August 1958, Eckert, Delta, Colorado, USA. 

More About MARY ANN GIRLING: 
Burial: 09 June 2003, Riverside Cemetery, Hotchkiss, Delta, Colorado, USA 

More About SPOUSE UNKNOWN and MARY GIRLING: 
Divorce: September 1968 
Marriage: 01 August 1958, Eckert, Delta, Colorado, USA 

14.  MARGARET A. 6 ALLAN (PHYLLIS 5 GREEN, MARGARET 4 WAUGH, ALEXANDER 3 , THOMAS 2 , THOMAS 1 ) was born 25 
November 1894 in Hastings, Colorado, USA, and died 18 December 1986 in Los Angeles County, California, USA. 
She married CLARENCE B. HUNTER 1917, son of ? HUNTER and ? JOHNSON.  He was born 06 March 1892 in 
Missouri, USA, and died 06 January 1962 in Orange County, California, USA. 

More About CLARENCE HUNTER and MARGARET ALLAN: 
Marriage: 1917 

Children of MARGARET ALLAN and CLARENCE HUNTER are: 
i.  JOHN CLARENCE 7 HUNTER, b. 30 December 1920, Colorado, USA; d. 31 December 1975, Santa Clara County, 

California, USA; m. UNKNOWN SPOUSE. 
ii.  MILDRED HUNTER, b. 1924; d. 1929.
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15.  KENNETH LEONIDAS 6 GREEN (GEORGE SEPTIMUSMIDDLETON 5 , MARGARET 4 WAUGH, ALEXANDER 3 , THOMAS 2 , 
THOMAS 1 ) was born 11 October 1909 in Trinidad, Las Animas, Colorado, USA, and died 31 January 2003 in 
Lakewood, Colorado, USA.  He married UNKNOWN SPOUSE 17 July 1940 in Golden, Jefferson, Colorado, USA. 

More About KENNETH GREEN and UNKNOWN SPOUSE: 
Marriage: 17 July 1940, Golden, Jefferson, Colorado, USA 

Child of KENNETH GREEN and UNKNOWN SPOUSE is: 
16.  i.  KENNETH ALLAN 7 GREEN, b. 01 April 1942, Denver, Denver, Colorado, USA; d. 25 May 1979, Chicago, Cook, 

Illinois, USA. 

Generation No. 5 

16.  KENNETH ALLAN 7 GREEN (KENNETH LEONIDAS 6 , GEORGE SEPTIMUSMIDDLETON 5 , MARGARET 4 WAUGH, 
ALEXANDER 3 , THOMAS 2 , THOMAS 1 ) was born 01 April 1942 in Denver, Denver, Colorado, USA, and died 25 May 
1979 in Chicago, Cook, Illinois, USA.  He married JUDITH LUCILLA BRUNER October 1965 in Fort Collins, 
Larrimer, Colorado, USA.  She was born 23 October 1946 in New York, USA, and died 25 May 1979 in Black 
Hawk, Gilpin, Colorado, USA. 

More About KENNETH ALLAN GREEN: 
Burial: Black Hawk, Gilpin, Colorado, USA 
Cause of Death: aircraft crash 

More About KENNETH GREEN and JUDITH BRUNER: 
Marriage: October 1965, Fort Collins, Larrimer, Colorado, USA 

Child of KENNETH GREEN and JUDITH BRUNER is: 
i.  THREE SONS 8 GREEN.
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Evelyn Waugh (The author) 
Arthur Evelyn St. John Waugh (October 28, 1903 – April 10, 1966) 

During research, I have come across a number of items, letters and books that are about 
Evelyn Waugh. He has corresponded with the family in Australia and has done research into the 
family history himself. His father, Arthur, his brother, Alec, and his son Auberon are all 
published authors.  And so was his wife also with the name Evelyn. 

The television series Brideshead Revisited has made Evelyn Waughs book of the same 
name currently his most well known work. The following pages include copies of information 
from the inside covers of books written by the various waughs and letters written by Evelyn. 

There is also extensive notes from the first few pages of a recently publihsed biography 
of Evelyn Waugh by Selina Hastings.. 
The following is a information about Evelyn I extracted from the Internet as new information in 
this edition. 

Arthur Evelyn St. John Waugh (October 28, 1903 – April 10, 1966) was an English writer, 
best known for such satirical and darkly humorous novels as Decline and Fall, Vile Bodies, 
Scoop, A Handful of Dust, and The Loved One, as well as for more serious works, such as 
Brideshead Revisited and the Sword of Honour trilogy, that are influenced by his own 
conservative and Catholic outlook. Many of Waugh's novels depict the British aristocracy and 
high society, which he savagely satirizes but to which he was also strongly attracted. In addition, 
he wrote short stories, three biographies, and the first volume of an unfinished autobiography. 
His travel accounts and his extensive diaries and correspondence have also been published. 

American literary critic Edmund Wilson pronounced Waugh "the only first­rate comic genius the 
English have produced since George Bernard Shaw," while Time magazine declared that he had 
"developed a wickedly hilarious yet fundamentally religious assault on a century that, in his 
opinion, had ripped up the nourishing taproot of tradition and let wither all the dear things of the 
world." Waugh's works were very successful with the reading public and he was widely admired 
by critics as a humorist and prose stylist, but his later, more overtly religious works have 
attracted controversy. In unpublished notes for an essay on Waugh, George Orwell declared that 
Waugh was "about as good a novelist as one can be while holding untenable opinions." 
Conservative commentator William F. Buckley, Jr. found in Waugh "the greatest English 
novelist of the century." 
Born in London, Evelyn Waugh was the son of noted editor and publisher Arthur Waugh. He 
was brought up in upper middle class circumstances in Hampstead. His only sibling was his 
older brother Alec Waugh, who also became a writer. Both Arthur and Alec had been educated 
at Sherborne, an English public school, but Alec had been expelled during his final year and had 
then published a very controversial novel, The Loom of Youth, based on his school life. 
Sherborne therefore refused to take Evelyn and his father sent him to Lancing College, a school 
of lesser social prestige with a strong High Church Anglican character. This circumstance would 
rankle the status­conscious Evelyn for the rest of his life but may have contributed to his interest 
in religion, even though at Lancing he lost his childhood faith and became an agnostic. After 
Lancing, he attended Hertford College, Oxford as a history scholar. At Oxford, Waugh neglected 
academic work and was known as much for his artwork as for his writing. He also threw himself 
into a vigorous social scene populated by both aesthetes such as Harold Acton and Brian 
Howard, as well as members of the British aristocracy and the upper classes. His social life at 
Oxford influenced Waugh's personal transformation into something of a snob and provided the 
background for some of his most characteristic later writing. Waugh had at least two homosexual 
romances at Oxford (whether they had a physical dimension is unclear) before he began to date
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women in the late 1920s. Asked if he had competed in any sport for his College, Waugh 
famously replied "I drank for Hertford." 

Evelyn Waugh as a student, by the British painter Henry Lamb (1883­1960), a member of Walter 
Sickert's Camden Town Group and later a member of the Bloomsbury Group.Waugh's final 
exam results qualified him only for a third­class degree. He refused to remain in residence for the 
extra term that would have been required of him and he left Oxford in 1924 without taking his 
degree. In 1925 he taught at a private school in Wales. In his autobiography, Waugh claims that 
he attempted suicide at the time by swimming out to sea, only to turn back after being stung by 
jellyfish. He was later dismissed from another teaching post for attempting to seduce the matron, 
telling his father he had been dismissed for "inebriation". He was apprenticed to a cabinet­maker 
and worked briefly as a journalist, before he had his first great literary success in 1928 with his 
first completed novel, Decline and Fall. The title is from Gibbon, but whereas Gibbon charted 
the bankruptcy and dissolution of Rome, Waugh's was a hilariously witty account of quite a 
different sort of dissolution, following the career of the harmless Paul Pennyfeather, a student of 
divinity, as he is accidentally expelled from Oxford for indecency ("I expect you’ll be becoming 
a schoolmaster, sir," says the College porter to Paul, "That’s what most of the gentlemen does, 
sir, that gets sent down for indecent behaviour") and enters into the worlds of schoolmastering, 
high society, and the white slave trade. Other novels about England's "Bright Young Things" 
followed, and all were well received by both critics and the general public. 

Waugh entered into a brief, unsuccessful marriage in 1928 to the Hon. Evelyn Gardner. (Their 
friends called them he­Evelyn and she­Evelyn.) Gardner's infidelity would provide the 
background for Waugh's novel A Handful of Dust. The marriage ended in divorce in 1930. 
Waugh converted to Catholicism and, after his marriage to Evelyn Gardner was annulled by the 
Church, he married Laura Herbert, a Catholic, daughter of Aubrey Herbert, and granddaughter of 
Henry Herbert, 4th Earl of Carnarvon. This marriage was successful, lasting the rest of his life, 
producing seven children. His son Auberon Waugh achieved recognition as a writer and 
journalist. 

Waugh's fame continued to grow between the wars, based on his satires of contemporary upper 
class English society, written in prose that was seductively simple and elegant. Often, it was 
inventive. (A chapter, for example, written entirely in the form of a dialogue of telephone calls.) 
His conversion to Roman Catholicism in 1930 was a watershed in his life and his writing. It 
elevated Catholic themes in his work. His deep and sincere faith, both implicit and explicit, can 
be found in all of his later work. 

The period between the wars also saw extensive travels around the Mediterranean and Red Sea, 
Spitsbergen, Africa and South America. Sections of the numerous travel books which resulted 
are often cited as among the best writing in this genre. A compendium of Waugh's favourite 
travel writing has been issued under the title When The Going Was Good. 

With the advent of World War II, Waugh used "friends in high places", such as Randolph 
Churchill ­ son of Winston ­ to find him a service commission. Though thirty­six years of age 
with poor eyesight, he was commissioned in the Royal Marines in 1940. Few can have been less 
suited to command troops. He lacked a common touch. Though personally brave, he did not 
suffer fools gladly. There was some concern that the men under his command might shoot him 
instead of the enemy. Promoted to captain, Waugh found life in the Marines dull. 

Waugh participated in the failed attempt to take Dakar from the Vichy French in late 1940. 
Following a joint exercise with No.8 Commando (Army), he applied to join them and was
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accepted. Waugh took part in an ill­fated commando raid on the coast of Libya. As special 
assistant to the famed commando leader, Robert Laycock, Waugh showed conspicuous bravery 
during the fighting in Crete in 1941, supervising the evacuation of troops while under attack by 
Stuka dive bombers. 

Later, Waugh was placed 
on extended leave for 
several years and 
reassigned to the Royal 
Horse Guards. During this 
period he wrote Brideshead 
Revisited. He was recalled 
for a military/diplomatic 
mission to Yugoslavia in 
1944 at the request of his 
old friend Randolph 
Churchill. He and 
Churchill narrowly escaped 
capture/death when the 
Germans undertook 
Operation Rösselsprung, 
and paratroops and glider­ 
borne storm troops attacked 
the Partisan headquarters 
where they were staying. 
An outcome was a 
formidable report detailing 
Tito's persecution of the 
clergy. It was "buried" by 
Foreign Secretary Anthony 
Eden as being largely 
irrelevant. 

Much of Waugh's war 
experience is reflected in 
the Sword of Honour 
trilogy. His trilogy, along with his other work after the 1930s, became some of the best books 
written about World War II. Many of his portraits are unforgettable, and often show striking 
resemblances to noted real personalities. Many feel that the fire­eating officer in the Sword of 
Honour trilogy, Brigadier Ben Ritchie­Hook, was based on Lieutenant­General Sir Adrian 
Carton De Wiart VC, a friend of the author's father­in­law. Waugh was familiar with Carton De 
Wiart through the club to which he belonged. The fictional commando leader, Tommy 
Blackhouse, is based on Major­General Sir Robert Laycock, a real­life commando leader and 
friend of Waugh's. 

The period after the war saw Waugh living with his family in the West Country at his country 
homes, Piers Court, and from 1956 onwards, at Combe Florey in Somerset, where he lived as a 
country squire. He bequeathed the latter to his son, the writer and journalist Auberon Waugh. He 
made his living through writing and became a self­parodying reactionary figure. He was bitterly 
disappointed when the Roman Catholic Church, which he in part loved for what he perceived as 
its timelessness, began to adopt modern vernacular liturgy and other changes.
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Some of Waugh's best­loved and best­known novels come from this period. Brideshead Revisted 
(1945), is a brilliant evocation of a vanished pre­War England. Waugh revised the novel in the 
late 'fifties because he found parts of it 'distasteful on a full stomach' by which he meant that he 
wrote the novel during the grey privations of the latter war years (though his Diaries reveal that 
he made plenty of wartime visits to his club and to the Ritz for champagne and amusement). He 
described the novel as being about the effect of the grace of God on a diverse group of people. 
At the same time it was an elegy to an England he believed was being destroyed by Socialism. 
He partially retracted this view in his preface to the revised Brideshead; he said he didn't foresee 
when he wrote it, the 'cult of the English country house' which grew up after the war; after 
admitting this he concluded that in some ways the novel was 'a panegyric preached over an 
empty coffin'. Brideshead is a distinct halfway mark in Waugh's career. Though his work had 
become darker and more Catholic from the second half of Vile Bodies onwards, Brideshead 
represents the beginning of a more serious and middle­aged period for Waugh: when it was 
published he said he felt it to be 'his first real novel'. It divides critics and writers. Anthony 
Burgess said he was seduced by it and that he'd read it a dozen times and had 'never failed to be 
charmed or moved'; he also praised it for its 'superb comedy' (we might speculate that Burgess, 
being a lapsed Catholic, was more open to the book). On the other hand Kingsley Amis (whose 
Lucky Jim twits Waugh within its pages and, in Jim Dixon, gives an answering voice to the 
despised Hooper in Brideshead) condemned the book with 'there are few things I detest more 
than Roman Catholic baronial snobbery'. (Interestingly, Amis became Waugh­like as he grew 
older, taking a reactionary stance to modern life. He also calls Waugh a very rude name in his 
letters and says that Waugh only ever wrote one good book: Decline and Fall.) The Australian 
critic Robert Hughes called it 'the only vulgar novel Waugh ever wrote'. The American critic 
Edmund Wilson had similar distaste for Brideshead and the works that followed. The objections 
are legitimate but are directed almost entirely at the novel's politically Conservative and 
religiously Catholic content; judged as a piece of fiction, it is a great production by one of the 
best prose stylists in English. 

The Ordeal of Gilbert Pinfold (1957) is amazing for its dispassionate recounting of the hero's 
steady descent into madness ­ the experience was actually Waugh's own, the result of taking 
medication which induced a bout of severe paranoia on a sea­voyage to Ceylon (Sri Lanka). Less 
successful was Helena, (1953), a fictional account of the Empress Helena and the finding of the 
True Cross. Waugh regarded this novel as his best work, a verdict which few others have ever 
shared. 

Latterly Waugh put on a lot of weight, and the sleeping pills he took, combined with a heavy 
intake of alcohol, cigars and little exercise, weakened his health. His writing productivity 
gradually ran down, and there was a very noticeable falling off in the quality of what fiction he 
did write (his last published work, Basil Seal Rides Again, taking up some of the characters from 
his very earliest satirical works, fails to reach any dramatic climax). At the same time, he 
continued to produce valuable journalism, where the demands of sustained construction were 
less severe; and his power of delivering fearsome insults remained intact. Upon hearing that 
Randolph Churchill had had a non­malignant tumour removed, Waugh complained: "It was a 
typical triumph of modern science to find the only part of Randolph that was not malignant and 
remove it." His duties as paterfamilias brought him little pleasure: "My unhealthy affection for 
my second daughter has waned. Now I despise all my seven children equally." 

He died, aged 62, on 10 April 1966, on returning home from Mass on Easter Sunday. His estate 
at probate was valued at £20,068. This did not include the value of his lucrative copyrights, 
which Waugh put in a trust for his children. He is buried at Combe Florey, Somerset
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Letters 

These 2 letters from Evelyn Waugh were sent to Truca Cox (nee Waugh) who is a great 
grand­daughter of “Aussie” Alexander. 

“Aussie” Alexander "  JACK Waugh "  Arthur John CLARENCE Waugh " Truda 

A retyped copy preceeds a copy of the handwritten original. 

July 1st, 1950 
Dear Miss Waugh, 

Alexander Waugh (1754-1827) is my great-great-grandfather. He married 
once only, Mary Neill of Edincrow, in 1786 and had six sons and four daughters. I 
think you must have got confused in the generations somewhere. There was a son 
Alexander, also a clergyman who in 1820 married Louisa Gordon. He died in 
1824 leaving one daughter. My great-great-great-grandfather Thomas Waugh of 
East Gordon married once only, Margaret Johnson. I can find no record of 
Isabella Smith or Elizabeth Gallon. Can they perhaps be wives of your grandfather 
J.J. Waugh? They do not appear in my pedigree. 

I have visited East Gordon, a large farm on a hill near Marchmont. The 
house can be little changed since Thomas Waugh's time. There are graves in the 
churchyard of Waughs in the 17th and 18th century. Nothing later and no trace 
of the family in the district. Alex (Alexander) Waugh is my older brother. He 
married a girl from Melbourne. A first cousin of mine, Eric Waugh, lives in 
Hobart, Tasmania, but has no sons. 

There is a dull but ? life of Alexander Waugh by James Hay and Henry 
Belfrage - out of print now of course. 

The portrait you noticed on the wall in the photograph is by Wagemann. 

Yours sincerely, 

Evelyn Waugh.
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9th November 1962 
Dear Miss Waugh, 

I am sorry to say that I have no records for the members of the family who 
emigrated to Australia in the last century. In this century two branches settled in 
Tasmania but, I take it, you are not interested in them. 

Waugh is a common enough name in the Lowlands and appears in place 
names such as Waughton. 

I do not think we have any ancestral connection with Anacum?. I have 
visited East Gordon, near Greenlaw, Berwickshire, the farm on which Reverend 
Alexander Waugh was born - a bleak but substantial yeoman property. There are 
graves there of Waughs from the early 17th century. The family were not 
gentlemen but yeoman proprietors. Alexander Waugh's brother sold the property 
and bought another near Melrose. 

Alexander Waugh, in leaving Scotland, adopted a coat of arms almost 
identical to that of Wauchope, for which there was no traceable authority. It was 
used illicitly by my great-great-grandfather, great-grandfather and 
grandfather. My father had it legalised at the English College of Arms. 

John Neill, Alexander Waugh's brother-in-law, grew rich in London, Surrey 
Street, as a corn chandler and having no children left a considerable fortune to 
his nephews and nieces. This has been subdivided until it has disappeared. 

Ancum is not far from Melrose. It seems to me that the property you mention 
may be the one Alexander Waugh later bought on leaving East Gordon. It was not 
a family estate and I should doubt it being worth £20,000 in 1839. 

I have nothing of Daniel L. Waugh. 

I am sure Benjamin Waugh was no relation. 

There was a biography of Alexander Waugh written shortly after his death 
by two fellow ministers. It aims at edification rather than genealogy. 

William Waugh, son of Alexander, was Master of the Merchant Taylors 
Company in London in 1849. He was a prosperous pharmacist, grandfather of the 
late Sir Telford Waugh. He died in London. 

I think your William Waugh must be the son of Alexander Waugh's brother - 
the farmer who left East Gordon. 

I can supply the genealogy of my own immediate ancestors but I take it 
your interest is in the Australian branch. 

I am very sorry not to have been more helpful. 

Yours sincerely, 
Evelyn Waugh



28



29 

A portrait of Evelyn Waugh
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Auberon Alexander Waugh (November 17, 1939 – January 16, 2001) 
Born at his maternal grandparents' house at Pixton Park, Dulverton, Somerset, he was known as 
"Bron" by friends and family. He was the second child and first son of the novelist Evelyn 
Waugh and his wife, Laura (née Herbert). Born just as war broke out, he hardly saw his father 
until he was five. He was educated at the Benedictine Downside School in Somerset before 
beginning a degree at Christ Church, Oxford. However, he was rusticated (suspended for 
unsatisfactory performance) by the academic authorities, and chose not to return to the 
university, preferring to make an early start in journalism. 
During his National Service, he was commissioned into the Royal Horse Guards and served in 
Cyprus, where he was almost killed in a machine gun accident. Annoyed by a fault in the 
machine gun on his armoured car, he seized the end of the barrel and shook it, accidentally 
triggering the mechanism so that the gun fired several bullets through his chest. As a result of his 
injuries, he lost his spleen, one lung, several ribs, and a finger, and suffered from pain and 
recurring infections for the rest of his life. While recuperating from the accident in Italy, he 
began his first novel, The Foxglove Saga.
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Journalistic career 
Waugh began his journalistic career in 1960 as a cub reporter on Peterborough, the social/gossip 
column of the Daily Telegraph. In the long and prolific career that followed he wrote for The 
Spectator, New Statesman, British Medicine and various newspapers (including the Daily 
Mirror, Daily Mail, Evening Standard and The Independent). From 1981 to 1990 he wrote a 
leader­page column for The Sunday Telegraph. 
His work as political columnist on The Spectator coincided with the war in Biafra, a mainly 
Catholic province that had tried to secede from Nigeria. Waugh strongly criticized Harold 
Wilson's government, especially the foreign secretary Michael Stewart, for colluding in the use 
of mass starvation as a political weapon. He was sacked from The Spectator in 1970, but with the 
support of Bernard Levin and others, he won damages for unfair dismissal in a subsequent 
action. 
He was opposed to the reforms of the Second Vatican Council and criticized the Church that 
emerged from it. He was often critical of Archbishops Basil Cardinal Hume and Derek Worlock 
for their Mickey Mouse approach to Catholicism. 
In 1990 he returned to the Daily Telegraph as the successor of Michael Wharton (better known 
as "Peter Simple"), writing the paper's long­running Way of the World column three times a 
week until December 2000. In 1995 he finally ended his long association with The Spectator, but 
in 1996 he rejoined The Sunday Telegraph, where he remained a weekly columnist until shortly 
before his death. 
Private Eye 
Waugh became most famous for his Private Eye Diary, which ran from the early 1970s until 
1985, and which he described as "specifically dedicated to telling lies". He fitted in well with the 
Eye, which had the political ethos of "balls to the lot of them", although he made clear his 
particular dislike of the Labour government of the 1970s. The education secretary Shirley 
Williams became an especial hate figure because of her support for comprehensive education. In 
his autobiography Will This Do?, Waugh claimed that he had broken two bottles of wine by 
banging them together too hard to celebrate when she lost her seat in the House of Commons. 
Waugh was a candidate at the 1979 election, indulging another of his pet hates, former Liberal 
Leader Jeremy Thorpe, who was about to stand trial for conspiracy to murder in a scandal that 
Waugh had helped expose. It was alleged that Thorpe had links to an incident in which a man 
called Norman Scott, who claimed to have had an affair with Thorpe, had seen his dog shot dead. 
Waugh stood against Thorpe for the Dog Lovers' Party and Thorpe obtained an injunction 
against Waugh's election literature. Waugh polled only 79 votes, but Thorpe lost his seat. 
Waugh left Private Eye in 1986 when Ian Hislop succeeded Richard Ingrams as editor. 
Waugh's Views 
Waugh broadly supported Margaret Thatcher in her first years as prime minister, but by 1983 he 
became disillusioned by the Government's economic policy, which he felt used the destructive 
economics and cultural ideas of the New Right. When Thatcher became a strong public opponent 
of his friend and Sunday Telegraph editor Peregrine Worsthorne, Waugh became a confirmed 
opponent of hers. Her closeness to Andrew Neil, editor of The Sunday Times, whom Waugh 
despised, further confirmed his view. 
Waugh tended to be identified with a defiantly anti­progressive, small­c conservatism, opposed 
to "do­gooders" and social progressives. Three days after his death at age 61 from heart disease, 
journalist Polly Toynbee in The Guardian (see [1]) vociferously attacked him for such views. 

Waugh criticised what he saw as the cultural proletarianisation of the British middle classes, the 
general Americanisation of Britain and the sale of the wealth of the English shires to American 
businessmen, which to a traditional Tory were some of the most deplorable aspects of the 
Thatcher years. He had a house in France and was a fervent supporter of European integration 
and the single currency, which he saw as a means of de­Americanising the UK. 
Other ways in which he did not conform to reactionary stereotypes was in his strong opposition
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to the death penalty, and in his antipathy towards the police force in general (especially when 
they sought to prevent drink­driving; Waugh believed strongly that this was not as serious a 
problem as it is widely believed to be, and referred to the anti­drink­driving campaign as the 
"police terror"). He opposed anti­smoking legislation (despite a delicate heart condition that 
prematurely killed him) and in his later years he was highly critical of Labour attempts to ban 
fox hunting. In 1995 he fervently opposed attempts by the then Home Secretary Michael Howard 
to introduce a national identity card, a policy which at the time was (ironically, considering later 
developments) opposed by the Labour opposition. 
Waugh held the eccentric view (probably motivated by his anti­Americanism) that, while the 
dangers of smoking (especially passive smoking) and drinking were exaggerated, the dangers of 
hamburger eating were seriously under­reported; he frequently referred to "hamburger gases" as 
a serious form of atmospheric pollution and even made references to the dangers of "passive 
hamburger eating". He even said that computer games "produce all the symptoms and most 
known causes of cancer", though his tongue was probably in his cheek when he made those 
comments. 
Waugh has been called a nostalgist and a romantic, with a strong tendency towards snobbery, 
although his anarchistic streak ensured that he retained the admiration of a surprising number of 
people whom he would have considered horribly "progressive" or "leftish", including Francis 
Wheen who vociferously disagreed with the comments made by (then) Guardian columnist Polly 
Toynbee a few days earlier. 
Auberon Waugh married, in 1961, Lady Teresa Onslow, daughter of the 6th Earl of Onslow. The 
couple — with their two sons and two daughters — eventually moved to his father's old house, 
Combe Florey, Somerset. 
Literary Career 
Waugh wrote five novels before giving up writing fiction, partly in protest at the inadequate 
money authors received from public lending rights at libraries and partly because he knew he 
would always be compared unfavourably to his father. The five novels are: 
The Foxglove Saga (1960) 
Path of Dalliance (1963) 
Who Are The Violets Now? (1965) 
Consider the Lilies (1968) 
A Bed of Flowers (1972). 
He also wrote a book about the Thorpe case, The Last Word. He made several programmes for 
ATV in the 1970s, and was interviewed by Anthony Howard in 1991 for the Thames TV 
documentary Waugh Memorial. 
From 1986 until his death he also edited the Literary Review magazine, where he organised 
awards for what he called "real" (i.e. rhyming and scanning) poetry, and also a Bad Sex Award 
for the worst description of sex in a novel. 
Death 
Like his parents, Laura who died at 57 and Evelyn who died at 62, Auberon Waugh died 
relatively early: he died of heart disease at the age of 61. He is buried in Combe Florey, 
Somerset.
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